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Qhihqu gyninp qubynd L UL {wyph Qni-
qupp Gwhw@qh Onpnthnp quyunmy’ Giplu-
Jjhu {uwjwunwlh {wlpwybnmpjuli Lnont
dupgnui” dwpqyblupnG dwlwénp punwphg
ninhn qony 48 Yu hyniuhu' Lwiuwn (konwG hyni-
uhuwplbjwhwjwg winwnwowdl (tnGwdnt-
ntinphg Utyh uwmnpnunhb, onyh dwybtplniyphg
1105 ¥ vhohG pwpdpnipjwb Yypuw:

‘Utipuyniiu qnun hwjwpluy qynin mGh
40 mniG:

G ninh ywumdiwlwl wlgjup wquunyjwo k
funp (pnipjw G pnnny: ‘Lpw YwuhG ] GG hGy-
wbtiu hwy, wylybu £ omwp dwwnbkGuaghpGtpp,
th6sk huy nhywwlwt Juifbpugptpp':

UwluwjG, tpb qpuynp wnpympGhpp pup
[pnipynil G0 wywhywlnd, wyw qyninh ywwn-
dwwl wigyup ytp hwhtine gnpond pwyjw-
Juwlwywth wnww Gnp G0 dwunwupupnid
guumi b gyniquibipd hGwywjptpnd wywh-
wwijwo Gnipwlub dywlnyph yuwumiwlwi
wmwnpwplnyyp hnpwpdwGatpn:

1 ‘bnyGhuy d© nuphG L b nuph uyqphl yepuptipnn w6
Juytipwgnptipp, npuntin welw GG yhdwjugpuyjulG qu-
(wqu myjulitp Cnywytiph gnpowwnipjubp tlpw-
Jw hwjwpGuy qmuntph dwuhl, 2pthqub @hpdwlw
Quiwfushl Lu) tipplk s6G hhywwnwlynui:

Jiliza is situated at the foot of one of the
wooded north-east-facing branches of Mount
Lalvar, 48 km north of Vanadzor, the centre of
Lori Region of the Republic of Armenia
(Tzobopor District of Gugark Province,
Armenia Maior), in a straight line, at an average
altitude of 1,105 metres above sea level.

At present it is a purely Armenian-inhabited
village with 40 houses.

The history of Jiliza remains obscure as the
Armenian and foreign historiographers and
even the available archive documents keep
sheer silence about it.!

However, unlike written sources, the mon-
uments of material culture preserved in the
village and the adjoining sites provide much
information concerning the historical past of
the village. Thus, they reveal that until the
‘20s of the 18th century, the territory of pres-
ent-day Jiliza was occupied by at least five

1 Neither Jiliza nor the adjacent village of Chanakhchi is men-
tioned even in the archive documents of the 19th and early
20th centuries, which report various statistical data regard-
ing the Armenian-populated villages within the jurisdiction
of the deanery of Shulaver.

2phqu qymnh wkupp whtqtipphg L hhG qtiptiqumGngh ynmihg
Jiliza as seen from space and from the old cemetery of the village
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A general view of the monuments of Jiliza proper from the south-west and Mount Lalvar from the sacred site of the Cross of Tolabab




b dwulGwynph, wuwpqynud t, np dhGsk o2
nuph 20-wlwd pp. Giphujhu 2hihqu gyninh
nwpwopmd gnympynil G0 mGtgh wenlGuql
hh(q qnin hwjwpGwy qynintip, npnlp ponnpG tp
wytnyt] L wiwywgly GG oudwlghGtph wpyw-
Jwlpltpny pwowitinqwo (tiqqhGiph wuyw-
wnwlnipyniGGtph httmlwbpny: Cnipg vtnytiu
nup wlg dhwjl gyuquwumtinhGtphg tpyniund
(Gipywjhu 2hthqu b Qwlwfush qyninbpp)
JtpunhG hwunmwwuynd G606 vwiuwywphy hwj
pGunwGhpGbp L ytpwltinubuwglnd hGuiklh
qyuuntpp:

COnhwlnp wndwdp 2hihqujh nmwpwo-
pnd L Gpw vwhdwGGGphG vEpd yuwhywiguwo
Gynpwub Wywlnyph hnipwpdwGGtpp dwdw-
Gwiwqpnuiul wnnuing Jupbih b judpwynpty
tinynt hpiGwlywl dwuh: UnwohGGtpp, h ntvu
Quwhuwjwptipn-Pwquptipnn wipngh, unpw-
Ypuh L JoGénpbpuh qwGptph, Tudhp phih
dwd YnyJwo qyninuwunbinhh Lytintgni?, Ytpw-
ptipnud GG d-d"Q nunptphG, huy Gpyponpn funwd-
P pwnugwd wybtih dwlnp, vwju)l shwdw-
dwlwly wybtih vtowphy hnipwpdwGGtphg
(qyminuuntinhGtp, tytintghGtp, qbtptiquwlng-
Gtp L wyG), nip vheGunpuphG:

A-3NMUUP2D LNFCULIULUUNRURE

Guidnd £ 2pthqu qyminh wplbipwi bq-
phG* onyh dwybtplnyphg 1111 ¢ pwpépmpjul
Ynw (N 41°1339.84"; E 044°3748.96"):

Stnnud tint) GG Whujwlg Yhg Gptp phlni-
puGGtp: Unwohlp dhwlwy punwowol hn-
nhGywopny kytnbghG £, nph htwptnp hwahy
L0 Gyuwnpynwi: Gpypnpnp YytpohGhu hwpwyhg
Jhg qulquiuummbi t, npp, pun wdkGw)h,
tinty L ypyGwhwnply: Gpponpnp Ghtntgm L qui-
quiuunwl wpldnjwl dwjuwnmitphg puguwo
ununptipnl hp dte wuithnthnn quyhpl k, nphg
wwhywijwo npditpp hwqghy vkl dtwnp
pwpénnmpjniG mGhG:

2hthqughltpp yyuwynd GG, np hnypwpdw-
(wfuiph G0 dwup wwjpbgnuiGtipny nylswg-
Yt £ 1930-wlwl pywlwGGtphG, nph wpnymG-
pnid Gtpywjynidu nn9 hnipwupdwlwiuiphg
thwunwgh wwhwywlyt & dhwjl quiqulw-

2 Qupqugwo dhoGwnwuphl yYtpwptipnn Gdnptpuh
Jupp (1213 p.) L Fwyhp ptyh duwdp qubGymy LG Pw-
(in1) gtimmp hngunud: MuwyiwlGwynpjuwo wpfuwphwgpu-
Jul vwhiwlwquuiwdp” wju, hGsytu Gub Gnyl dn-
nuwhnyunmy qubynn ntheGunupjub dh pwGh hnwp-
dwlltp Guuwuwlyunpyt) tGp GhpYuywgltp Wby wyp
wnwldhl hpwnwpuynipjudp:

3 StnwghGtpp tytintignt dhpwn wlniGp s6G hhpnt L Gpnud
G0 tpynt wlniG Up. Qunywowohl ud Up. Uwpghu:

purely Armenian-inhabited villages all of
which were devastated and reduced to ruins in
the aftermath of Lezghin raids (these moun-
taineers had been incited by the Ottoman
invasions). Around a century and a half later,
a small number of Armenian families took up
living in two of these sites, present-day Jiliza
and Chanakhchi, thus reviving the ancient vil-
lages.

Chronologically speaking, the monuments
of material culture preserved in Jiliza and its
neighbourhood may be classified in two
groups: the first of them comprises monu-
ments tracing back to the period between the
10th and 13th centuries (Chakhalaberd-Baza-
berd, Khorakert, Khendzorex and the church
of a village site called Church of David Bek?)
and the second represents a cluster of smaller
monuments which are larger in number (vil-
lage sites, churches, cemeteries, etc.) and date
from the Late Middle Ages.

THE MONUMENTS OF JILIZA PROPER

This cluster of monuments is situated at the
eastern extremity of the village, at an altitude
of 1,111 metres above sea level (N
41°1339.84"; E 044°3748.96").

It used to comprise three adjoining build-
ings, the first of which was a uni-nave vaulted
church,’? the second a belfry abutting on it in the
south and the third a narthex the surviving walls
of which hardly have a height of a metre. The
western entrances of both the church and bell
tower open into this narthex. The latter proba-
bly had two floors. As for the former, its ves-
tiges can hardly be discerned.

The inhabitants of Jiliza attest that most of
these monuments were exploded in the 1930s,
in the aftermath of which, only the first storey
of the belfry is preserved from the entire clus-
ter. Most presumably, its destroyed second

2 The monastery of Khendzorex, which traces back to the High
Middle Ages (1213) and the Church of David Bek are situ-
ated in the valley of the river Banush. Due to their geo-
graphical position, these monuments as well as several oth-
ers located in the same valley and dating back to the Late
Middle Ages will be presented in another publication.

3 The local people do not remember the right name of the
church and call it either Sourb Astvatzatzin (Holy Virgin) or
St. Sargis.
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Gymnuthejw hnyywpdwbwiudph quiquijumnwl wmtupp
hwpun]-wplbtiphg b hwpwihg

The belfry within the monument cluster of Jiliza from the
south-east and south
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G nuutheyul hnmpwnpdwlwiwiph quiquijuuwb sGwgnpnibpn hjnwhu-wnplainunphg, Geppniun L hwwnwljmghon
The remnants of the belfry within the monument cluster of Jiliza from the north-west and inwardly; the plan of the bell tower

nwl wnwohl hwpyp: UnpowGywo tpypnpn
hwplyp, pun wdkGw)Gh, nGkgh) & nip uymGhph

Ypw Jubqliwo upwow)n yinupny wyjwnpuynn
nnunGnu®:

4 b ntiw, 2phjhquiyh’ fulinpn wowplw hnpwpdwlwudphl
hwp U GdwG E PniGhu-fowstlh qiphquulngnid wwh-
wuwljwd hnpwpdwlwfunuipp: bay yepuptpmd L unuly
qulquijuunwip, wyw YytpohlGhu qniquhtinGtpl wnljw
G hwnjuwytiu Gniqupph L Upgwtuh th wpp hGuygw;-
phpmy (oppGuy’ LtpphG <nnndwgyph, Upmplhh, Fngdtinh
Up. Uwpghu Julptiph quGquiuwwmbtpp, Uwdolphuh
Unypnyun b Mignilphihuw hGuwduwyptiph quiquiju-
nmG-tytintghGtpp Gmquppmy b Pwlwlgh, UGd Qw-
pwinipuwnh L Quptipw wlwwwwmbtph quiquijw-
wmGtipG Upgwjunud):

floor had a rotunda resting on eight pillars and
ending with a pointed spire.*

4 The cemetery of Bolnis-Khachen, Bolnis District, Georgia,

retains a cluster of monuments which exactly resembles the
one in Jiliza. As for the belfry itself, its parallels can partic-
ularly be seen in a number of sites in Gugark (Lower
Horomayr, Ardvi, St. Sargis of Dovegh as well as the bel-
fry-churches in the sites of Kuybulagh and Uzunkilisa in
Samtzevris) and Artsakh (the belfries of the cloisters of
Banants, Metz Gharamurat and Charek).

Quiquyummi wnweohl hwpyh GhpphG wbupp ntwh
hwpun] L hyntuhu

An inner view of the first floor of the belfry to the south and
north



Lnpwpdwlwiuiph pnipe wwpwoyty £ nip
dholunwphl Jepwpbpnn qptiqiwlngp, nphg
wwhww(yt GG dhwjG dh pwlh uvwjwwnw-
wuwGGtin:

Swywlwpwph ptynp. ginupwnuy, quiquijuunwb
Gtipunud, YnnhG L YytphG dwunud wwhww Gyt E htnbgup.

b py(ht) o d“¥ (1665), | wju b hwliqhun
Cowdwqhl, np ...

<puwn. wnwohl whqu:

This monument cluster used to be surround-
ed with a late medieval graveyard the only rem-
nants of which are several blocks of memorial
stone.

An ornate tombstone fragment preserved inside the belfry
retains the following inscription on one of its sides and on its
upper part:

Transl.: In the year 1114 (1665). In this grave
reposes Ramaz...

(e 4(
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Swwwlwpwp, 1665 p.
A tombstone of 1665

Swuywlwpwph ptynp. ginupwinuy, quiquijuwnwub
(tipund, tptuhG Wwhww Gyt L htnbgup.

e [ .uw Bun @Gug Qbnwidwy | Gpghpd, b
nninl pwh UgughlG L dwGhuupwphhG widbn
Gwhunnuwl(bw); LhG dqby/pG onya. niu holiwy
Juywlh Lpun, quuwp, pbpbwy bnwp b nwww-
Ghu:

<pww. wnwohl wiquu:

Owlinp. Gtinwiw tpypnid Swh Upwup dbhp Cwhiw-
quph mwbp hymppGyut £ 1607 p., ntunh wyl wGép, nph
hhywwmwyhG yapnyt) L ung 6 mwwwlwpwpp, uwuiyt) b
2wy pwlwGha:
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Inside the bell tower, the fragment of another richly-
adorned gravestone bears the remnants of an inscription on its
face:

Transl.: ..this person went to meet Shah Abbas
in the Geghama land [the basin of Lake Sevan]
but suffered martyrdom on his way and was
thrown into the sea. A vision made it known, we
Sfound him and placed him in this grave.

Published for the first time.

Note: Shah Abbas enjoyed the hospitality of Melik
Shahnazar in the Geghama land in 1607; therefore, the person
buried under this gravestone was killed in the same year.
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Swuwwlwpwn, 1607 p.
A tombstone of 1607



2hihquyh hwpwyuwyhl Ynnuind® dnpwlyh
wowynnuijub gymunh ntd hwlnhdwl hjnwp-
uwhwjwg jwGh ptpnipjuwl Yypw, mwpwoyuwod
G qyninh’ vhdjwlg Yhg hhG L Gnp gbptiquiw-
GngGtpp: UYbih pwpdp dwunid qubynn fuhwn
pwnnuiltipny hhG qbptiquuingmy wywhwwG-
yti] GG wybjh pw6 tpynt hwpynip widywy vw-
(wunwwwbbtpn, npnGg pynmd® Gub dtnptpp
ynophl juwywo hwlgnigjwih nipjupulnuy-
Gtpny nnuGyyniGwdl Yyuwywo vh pwlh
nwwwlwpwnbn:

Lwipy t Gptg, np 2-3 mwulwdjwl wnwe wju
hGwywypmd tnbk &6 Gl Gpym wpdwGughp
nwwwlwpwntp, npnlp qull), gwynp, vbtq
shwonnytig: Uhw wjn mwwwlwgnpbpp.

Swyw lwpuwp. tpwnywo, § wmnn.

Uju F wnwfuypwl wwpnG luoulpnyhd, [ np thn-
Jubjguwn wn [ w(umnuu)o, pydh)a | (Fad- (1661):

<pww. Fhywl hwy yhdwgpnipjuG, h. 9, Gplwd, 2012,
Lo 271:

Swywlwpwp. JupipwyniG pwphg, 3 wnn.

Uju I hwlghuwn [ npnkih Quipwiph | yhl Ow-
phGwGha:

pwwn. Fhywl hwj Jhdwagpnipjwa, h. 9, te 271:

Bwlnp. Jupomy tlp, wytth dhpw YihGhp yapowdty
«Uyu E hwlghun npnh Ejhqpuph GhG QwphGulGhi:

bGsuk, wju qbpbquwlngl wyGtplwpwn
thwuwnnud k, np Giplujhu 2hihqu qyuinp d2-
JE nuptipnud L vhGsk I nuph 20-wlwi pp.
pujulyul twpnupwn b tnty, pln npoud, gyni-
nuwutnhh ytpwoywo dtpdwlw pnnp qjninb-
nh GdwG qnun hwjwpluy (wowpbjunuyui):

The old and new graveyards of Jiliza extend
side by side on the curve of a north-facing slope
rising on the right side of a gorge right opposite
the village, in its southern part. The former,
which lies higher than the latter, preserves more
than two hundred densely-laid undressed slabs
of memorial stone, including several rectangu-
lar tombstones with outlined reliefs of the
deceased with their arms crossed on their
chests. Some 2 to 3 decades ago, this cemetery
also retained two inscribed gravestones which
we unfortunately failed to find in situ during
our visit in March 2013. Below follow their
epitaphs:

Eight lines engraved on a tombstone broken into 3 frag-
ments:

Transl.: In this grave reposes Mr. Khosrov, who
consigned his soul to God in the year 1110 (1661 ).

Published in: “Fhjwl hwj yhtwgpnipjud, h. 9, Gplwd,
2012, Lo 271.

Three lines carved on a reddish tombstone:
Transl.: In this grave reposes ..Zakar’s wife

Parinan.
Published in: FpywG hwj Jhdwgpmpjwd, h. 9, ke 271.
Note: The following decipherment of this inscription
seems more acceptable to us: «Uju L hwlighum npnh
Erhqpwph YhG QuphGuGhGy (transl.: “In this grave reposes
Parinan, the wife of son Elizbar”).

This cemetery proves that from the 16th to
17th centuries and up until the ‘20s of the 18th
century, Jiliza represented quite a populous vil-
lage being purely inhabited by Apostolic
Armenians like the other adjacent places.

2hhqu gymnh hwpwyuwyhl nnimd wwpwoywd qbintq-
twlngp L wunypupwlnul muwwGupupbp

The cemetery lying in the south of Jiliza and tombstones with
reliefs



LUQULGMY Jud QULULULG)E

Pujuyul jwy yuwhywijwd vhelGwnup-
Jul ptipnp quynud © 2hjhquijhg nnhn qony
1,8 Yu hyntuhu-wplbp® Gpynt dnpuyGtph shol
hjnuhu-hwpuwy nnnipjudp  hpyulnuluwdb
tpqupwo EnGwdmnh pupdpunhp ququphG
(0. 1. 1043 4, N 41°1339.76"; E 044°3900.82"):

2hihqughlbtphG Qwiuwjwpbpy wijwdp
hwjwnGh dheGwnwpjuwl wipwynin ptpnl pln-
hwlpwwtu GniyyGwugymy E 0 nuph wlgptiph
wnlymnipjuwdp hwy dwntlGwqpnipjnilihg hwjn-
Gh Pwqupbpnh htn®:

5 Jwpnub Unltgh, Shtqpulwl yuumdnpyntl, Gplwd,
2001, ko 131: Lwl' Quuytbg U., Gwlwuwwphnprynt-
phtG h ULoG <wjwunmwd, h. U, Sthtuhu, 1842, Lo 88:
BnyhwGltutwb U, dwjwunmwGh phpgbpp, dhGhnhpy,
1970, k9 583:

BAZABERD or CHAKHALABERD

This medieval castle, which is preserved in quite
a good condition, rises at the lofty summit of a moun-
tain branch extending like a cape between two gorges
from the north southwards, 1.8 km north-east of
Jiliza in a straight line, at an altitude of 1,043 metres
above sea level (N 41°1339.76"; E 044°3900.82").

The solid fortification, known under the name of
Chakhalaberd to the inhabitants of Jiliza, is generally
identified with another stronghold, Bazaberd, men-
tioned in Armenian historiographical sources in con-
nection with the events of the 9th century.’

5 JwpruG Uplbygh, Shtghpuiw yquwudnpynil, Gplwd,
2001, ko 131: Also see Quuitibg U., Bwlwuwphnp-
nniphtG h ULoG <wjwuwnw(, h. U, Sthiuhu, 1842, to 88,
SmjhwGitutwG U., {wjwunwGh phpnbpp, dhGhnhy,
1970, ko 583.

Lwnuolbtp Rwquptpn fud Quituwjwptpng wipnghg
Partial views of the castle of Bazaberd (Chakhalaberd)




Lwunuolhp Luquptipn Yuwd Quituwwptpng wipnghg
Partial views of the castle of Bazaberd (Chakhalaberd)
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Lwunjwoltn Pwqupbipng Jud Qtumlux winnghg )

Partial views of the castle of Bazaberd (Chakhalaberd)

£tipnh hwpp dwybiplngpp 2pgwujunhg db-
Ynuwgywo £ vhGslk 12 ¢ pupdpmipjudp ppqu-
wn wuwpuywwwnny: Muwhwywijwonipjudp
hwwnuwytu wyph t pGlyanmd Ghipund ponjnpuy
hwwnwlwqony ubkbyuyltp niGtgnn Yhuwpnn-
pwy Gpynt wpmwpwyibpng hgqnpugywo wpl-
dunjwl wuwphuyp: Atpgh dnnpp pugywo kb
tint hwpwyhg: Uplbjwl wuwpuwyhG Yhg Gup-
pnun wnjw GG pwnwGlyynl hwnwlwaqony
udh pw(h utGyuyGtph WGwgnpyltin: Mwphuw-
Gtph pwpgwopl hpwlwlwgywo b mtnuijwb
wldywly pupny L Ypwpwnuiuny:

Pwuquptipng Jud Quiuwjwptpng wipngh ufutiiwwmhy hmmmqmqh (swth." Q-. CwluljywmGh)

The smooth grounds of the castle are sepa-
rated from the neighbourhood by ramparts with
towers which are laid with the local undressed
stone and mortar, their height reaching 12
metres. The western wall is strengthened by
two semi-circular towers having rooms of a cir-
cular plan. The entrance to the castle opened
from the south. Inwardly, its eastern wall used
to be adjoined by several rooms of a quadran-
gular plan, only the remnants of which are pre-
served at present.

A schematic plan of the castle of Bazaberd or Chakhalaberd (measurement by G. Shakhkian)

unGah

Gpynt punuwiwutphg punugwo wju wi-
Juwdp hwjnGh gjninuntinhG qunGynd L 2hih-
qujhg minhn qony 3,5 Yu hyntuhu-wnplbyp” hynt-
uhuwhwjwg winwnwowod] [knGwwloh unn-
nnunpG: Uhdjwlghg pnipe 0,4 Y htnwynpne-
pjwl Yypw qunlynn punwdwubtphg jnipuwpwl-
sympl mGh hp wnwGAhG GYknkghG L gipbquw-
(ingn: Ot mGwwtntph pwtwyny (Qnipg 30) L
pt" qtiptiquwlngph plnwpdwynmpjuip L Y-
gnil tytintgny wnwGdbGwlnd £ qyninuunbtnhh
Uho qud wplbpjwl pwnudwup (0ngh dwyb-
nlnyphg niGh 970 ¢ dhohlG pwpépnipyniG):

G niquwwunbtnhh nmwpwopmd Guwbih G0
hwqhy Gpuwpynn pnipe 30 mGwwmtintiph htw-

AGHEGI

This name is used with reference to a vil-
lage site situated at the base of a wooded
north-facing mountain slope, 3.5 km north-
east of Jiliza in a straight line. It consists of
two quarters located within about 0.4 km of
one another, each of them having its own
church and cemetery. Especially noteworthy
is the large or eastern quarter of the village
site, which lies at an average altitude of 970
metres above sea level: as compared to the
other one, it retains a greater number of house
sites (about 30), has a larger cemetery and a
standing church.
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Untgh quupunbtnhh thd pwnh tytinkgnt wbkupp hwpw-
Yhg, wpliimwphg, GbpphG wbupp nwh wplbp L pw-
nuijuy dwdlyp

The church of the large quarter of Aghegi from the south and
west; its inner view to the east and its vaulted roof

o

=S

ptip’ 1gywo hnnny mt yuwwnywod thwppwd pni-
uwuwlnipjudp:

GutintighG (0. u. 987 u, N 41°1400.18"; E
045°01°15.90") dhwlwy pwnuowol hnphG-
Jwopny wwnq 2hGnpjml £ junmgywo wi-
dywl mbnuiwl pwpny, Ypwpwnwhny (wp-
wmwphG swihtpG G6° 8,0 x 4,8 U, nputph hwu-
wnipjnilp’ 82 ud): Gpyptp owoyh wmuwly

The remnants of these dwelling sites, which
can hardly be discerned, are filled with earth and
covered with rich vegetation.

The church of the large quarter, which stands
at 987 metres above sea level (N 41°14°00.18";
E 045°01°15.90"), represents a simple uni-nave
vaulted building erected of the local undressed
stone and mortar (exterior dimensions: 8.0 x 4.8



wnlywod Jhuwppowlwdl pwnp Ypnn uppw-
nw) pwnuyhp jwiwpp Ghippniun htGqwo L
dty qniyyq wipwpdwluwynp htGwpwbhG: Loi-
uwynpnipjniGl6 hpwwluwgyws E wplbpyui L
wplinjwl Swlwwnmblbphg pugwo ntiwyh Gtpu
(wylwgnn dtjwlwl nuwdinunny, npnlighg
wpldnjwii wpunwpnun nilh pwg qniyGh
thwywnnp pwphg Ypungwd wwpg zpowlwly:
onpwlnd wnyuw GG qnyyq funphppuwpuGGn:
NiGhgty £ ipynt vnunp” pwgywod hwpwyuwjhG L
wpldinjwl dwlwwbtnhg, pwjg, hGswbu b-
plnud £, wyu Jtpehlp thwlyyby & 2hGwpwpn-
pjul wjwpwhg wlshowuwtiu htinn:

metres; wall thickness: 82 cm). Its semi-circular
vault, which lies beneath a gable roof, inwardly
rests on a finely-finished built-in-wall arch sup-
ported by a pair of pilasters. The monument is
illuminated through a window widening inward-
ly opening from each of the eastern and western
facades. Outwardly, the western window has a
simple frame of a light colour made of a single
piece of stone. The sanctuary has two recesses.
The church used to have two entrances opening
from its southern and western facades (appar-
ently, the latter closed immediately after the
completion of its construction).

Untigh gymununtnhh ¥kd pwnh tltntgnt mnbkupl wnplbtiphg, qpiquwingp L ywwnypupwlnul wwuwiwpwpbp
The church of the large quarter of Aghegi from the east; its graveyard and tombstones with reliefs




uhun punnuiltipny gtiptiqiwlngp mwpwo-
Jwo L titintignig pnipe 100 ¢ hymuhu' prpw-
Gjninh thnpphy pwpépnipjwl Yypuw (0. U. 960 v,
N 41°1402.94"; E 045°01'11.82"), L wwpni-
Guymd k pmpe 60 whdywl vwjwmwwwGGtn,
niquiynbwdl Yywiywo dh pwlh wnw-
wwlwpwntip, npnlg pynud Jub Gul wquwuyb-
pwpwlnuyyuobtn: dbtpohGltiphg wnwGa-
GwGnu L Jdtyp, nph Ypw, dtnptipp Ypophl
fuwswo Ywpgnt mpjupwlnuihg qun, wnljw
Gl Gwb hbojwih, Ydh, nubwyh, vwgh pwd-
nuyGtin:

LGwyuwypnud Jub Gul yuuywlnuGibphg
pwihnip’ mbnwhw( 5-6 fuwspwptin L fuwspw-
pwptynpGtn: NMwhwywlijwd wpdwlwqpni-
pjniGGtpp Gpynt fuwspwntinh Yypw taG:

vwgpun. gtinwpwnuy, Juiqiwd wquumywlnuGha,
sathtipp” 74 x 42 x 17 uwd, ytipGwiwunmd b fuwswplbtiph
uhol® 4 wmnn.

Ump)p fu(w)su Un(w)pbihl, | p py(pl)
NA|FL (1663);

<pwwu. wnwohl wiquud:

The cemetery of this quarter extends on the
small elevation of a hill branch of an insignificant
height, around 100 metres north of the church, at
960 metres above sea level (N 41°1402.94"; E
045°01°11.82"). It retains over 60 densely-laid
undressed slabs of memorial stone and several
rectangular tombstones some of which are
adorned with reliefs. One of them bears the out-
lined relief of a human being with his arms
crossed on his chest as well as reliefs of a horse-
man, jug, knife and a saz (an Oriental musical
instrument).

The graveyard also retains some cross-stone
fragments and 5 to 6 displaced khachkars which
have been stripped of their pedestals. Two of
these cross-stones are engraved with inscrip-
tions.

Four lines engraved on the upper part and between the
cross wings of an ornate cross-stone (dimensions: 74 x 42 x 17
cm) standing on a base:

Transl.: This Holy Cross to Arakel. In the year
1112 (1663).

Published for the first time.

" - o —
Towspwntip L wmwwwlwpwnph ptynp (FE-dC 1n.) Unbgh
qninuntinhh tho punh qliptqiwlngniud
Cross-stones and a tombstone fragment (17th to 18th cen-
turies) in the cemetery of the large quarter of Aghegi

Towspwn (1663 p.) Untigh gyninwuntinhh d6o punh qtiphquiwGngnid
A cross-stone (1663) in the cemetery of the large quarter of Aghegi



vwspup. ginupwnuy, mtnuwhw, suthtpp 148 x 64
ud, phywdwlwwhl’ thd dwuwdp tindywd 2 wmnn.

... |..ShUpG...:

<pww. wnwohl wlquud:

Untigh gjnuyuntnhh inpp Guid Y&phG puw-
nn qubynd £ Gufunpnphg Wnn 0,4 Yu hwpuy-
wpldnunp pnipe 120 ¢ pwpdpnipyulG Ypw:
Uyumbn Guwbih G0 Gny6 Jhdwlynd qubynn
unw 20 mGwuntintin:

Uju punp Lu niGtgh) & hp wnwGaha tytint-
ghG (N 41°13'57.66"; E 044°39'57.60"), npp qpbi-

) B it e Tl e i L 5 s o B L.
Untgh gynuquuntinhh thnpp punh bljbntgn: wbupp hwpudhg
The church of the small quarter of Aghegi from the south

7
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Two lines, which are mostly distorted, carved on the cor-
nice front of a richly-adorned displaced cross-stone (dimen-
sions: 148 x 64 cm):

Published for the first time.

Note: The inscription is too incomplete to be translated.

The small or upper quarter of Aghegi extends
about 0.4 km south-west of the large one, over
120 metres higher. It retains the sites of about 20
houses just in the same condition as those in the
other quarter.

Untigh gy
wnbbyphg, hwnu-wnpldnunphg, wplidinunphg b funpu-
Gp

The church of the small quarter of Aghegi from the north-east,
south-west and west; its sanctuary

bl
i

wbnph thnpp punh tytntgm wtupp hymuhu-

13
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pt ypylGmd L qmuquubtnhph dGo pwnnd
qulynn tytintgnt hnphGywopn (hwl wwppb-
nnipjneGG wyl &, np wjuntin dnunpp pugywo L
dhwjG wpldnjwl dwlwwmhg), vwyuylG mGh
wytiih thnpp sunhtip (6,35 x 4,45 4, npih hwu-
mnipjniGp” 72 ud):

uhun punnuiGtpny qliptiqiwlngp mwpwo-
ynud £ Ghtintignt wytpwlhg thnpp-hGs hwpwy-
wnplininp ' wybtih pupénp ghppnd (0. W. 1012 4,
N 41°13'57.12"; E 044°3956.46"): Stinnud wwh-
wwlyby &6 pnipge 30 whvpwly vwjwmwwwiitn
L dQ-dE nupbtphG pGnpny ndwyub L ginup-
Junmwjuwl hwpnupulpny wmbnuhwl th pw-
(h niwspwntip: dpwlghg dtyh ypw Gydwpynd
E pyuwyhp wpdwlwgpnipjub dGugnpn:

As already stated above, this quarter has its
own church (N 41°1357.66"; E 044°3957.60"),
which almost shares the composition of that in the
large quarter, although its dimensions are smaller
(6.35 x 4.45 metres; wall thickness: 72 cm) and it
has only one entrance opening from its western
facade.

The graveyard of this quarter lies slightly
south-west of, and higher than, the church ruins,
at 1,012 metres above sea level (N 41°13'57.12",
E 044°39'56.46"). It preserves about 30 densely-
laid undressed stone slabs and several displaced
cross-stones the stylistic and artistic ornamenta-
tion of which are typical of the 16th to 17th cen-
turies. One of the latter bears the hardly dis-
cernible remnants of a dated epitaph.

A cemetery (16th to 18th centuries) lying south-west of the church of the small quarter of Aghegi



fowgpun. gtinupwnuy, mtnuhw, unnphG Yhu dw-
up’ thpJwo, swthtipp' 51 x 42 ud, hhiGwhuwsh unnphG plph
tiplynt Yynnitpnud wwhwwbyty £ wpdwlwgpnipjul Shw)l
tipyunn ulqpGudwup.

Unp)p fu(w)su puf(pb)fu(wi)u, py(pt)...:

<pwu. wnwohl wlqud:

Only the initial two lines of an inscription are preserved
on both sides of the lower wing of the main cross of an ornate
displaced cross-stone (dimensions: 51 x 42 cm) the lower half
of which is crumbled:

Transl.: May the Holy Cross be merciful. In the year...
Published for the first time.

Tvwspwn (I2-dE 1n.) Unkigh gymnuwmbinhh thopp punh qiptqiwlngnnd
A cross-stone (16th to 17th centuries) in the cemetery of the small quarter of Aghegi

quroruaaGash

2hihquyhg ninhn gony 1,8 Yi hwpwy-wpb-
tip’ nbiwh Qwuwjwpbpny dqynn dnpuyh dw-
[uwynnih winwnwow ol wplinmwhwjug [kn-
Gwijwloh thnpphYy pwpdpnipjul Ypw (0. .
1305 4, N 41°1240.02"; E 045°3803.607), Yhuw-
ytp npuuipjwdp ninlu ywhwywGynud £ pnil w-
(nmGp vnnwgnipjuwl twnlijwd shwlwy pw-
nuowdl] hnphGwopny dh tytintgh, npp dbp-
dwplwy gqninughltphG hwymbh t Gupipw-
qbngh wiuip:

KARMRAGEGHTSI
A uni-nave vaulted church is preserved in
a semi-ruined state on a wooded west-facing
mountain slope rising on the left side of a
gorge which extends in the direction of
Chakhalaberd, 1.8 km south-east of Jiliza in a
straight line, at an altitude of 1,305 metres
above sea level (N 41°1240.02"; E
045°3803.607). Its historical name has fallen
into oblivion and the villagers of the neigh-
bourhood call it Karmrageghtsi.

-

Tvwgpwptin (¢"2-dT: nn.) Unbigh thnpp pwnh qntiquwngnud
Cross-stones (16th to 17th centuries) in the cemetery of the small quarter of Aghegi

Guminpwqtingh qyninuwntnhh tlitntgnt mbupp hymuhu-wplbtiphg
The church of the village site of Karmrageghtsi from the north-east
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Guminpwqtingh qynununtinhh tinkgnt nbtupl wnplbiphg, wpldmnphg b wplbjjwl Swijunhg pugdwd puwdnunh qifluwlw) pwpp
The church of the village site of Karmrageghtsi from the east and west and the stone above the window opening from its eastern facade

UGdwy pwpny L Ypwpwnwiuny hpwljw-
Gwgywo 2hGnipnilp Ghppniun yuwwmywo k b-
nt] ujwnh ptpnny, hul pwnp htGguwo uvky
qnuyq npilGwuyniGtphG: Yhuwpnnpwy lunpw-
(h vt wwhww Gyt GG qniyq junphpnupuGib-
nn, huy hynuhuwjhG npind” dypunnipjul w-
Jwquih hwdwp (wpuwnmbujwo funppp: (p-
utipnG niGkG 90 ud hwummpniG: Gybtintgnt yw-
thtipl &G" 8,26 x 5,22 u:

Gltntignt owoyp, wpldmjwG npdl wdpnn-
onipjulp L Gpwl hwpnn hynuhuwjhG L hww-
Juuwbtiu hwpwywjhG npitpl wpnbl pwinguo
tG°:

Gltntgnig hynuhu' dnph hwlnhywlwg
ynnuinud® juhnn wlwmwnh L dwgunlbph dby,
wwhwwymd £ dhwjl dh pwlh widwy vw-
Jwunwww iitp qupniGwynn gipiquuwlngp:

6 Cuwm vtp wnwelnpn 9hthqugh Wanpwyw {wihynpju-
Gh Yyuynipju’ titntghG dhask 1990-wjwG pp. ytpoh-
np ko dwuwdp YulqniG E tnkp, nph Ghpunid dwpnhy
wuwnuwwpynud EhG wGaplGbph dwiwlwly:

The monument (wall thickness: 90 cm;
dimensions: 8.26 x 5.22 metres), which is built
of undressed stone and mortar, used to be
inwardly covered with plaster, its vault resting
on a pair of pilasters. Its semi-circular sanctu-
ary preserves two recesses, and the niche for
the font can be seen in its usual place, namely
in the northern wall.

The church roof has already collapsed
together with its western, northern and southern
walls, the western one being thoroughly in
ruins.®

A cemetery preserving only several
undressed slabs of memorial stone lies in a
thick forest north of the church, on the opposite
side of the gorge.

6 According to Anushavan Halivorian, an inhabitant of Jiliza
who was our guide during our recent trip to Karmrageghtsi,
the church was mostly preserved standing until the late
1990s providing people with shelter when it rained.




JbnhG dbjun gymnuuntinhh thtntgnm ntupG wpldnunphg

The church of Upper Velad from the west

The church of Upper Velad from the south and north-west

il ' - AR g <5 5 J"..-

4G6Lh L dGLUY:

UWu  wljwdp hwjnmbh gmniquwubnhl
qubynud £ 2phthquyhg ninhn qony 2,3 Yu wpl-
tip’ winwnwowdly pjpuwququphl L hymup-
uwhwjwg (wlotphG: Onyh dwybplniyphg
pwnép £ 1040-1087 u:

Cnipg 30 mGwumtintip wwpniGwynn gyninu-
wmtinhnid Wwhwywlyty &6 Gwl unnpgtinmbyu
hnptip:

GltintighG quiymu b gyniquwuntinhh wnw-
yb pwpdpunphp dwund” pipuququphG (0. U.
1087 U, N 41°13'42.66"; E 044°3921.66"): NiGh

UPPER VELAD

This village site extends on the wooded top
and north-facing slopes of a hill, 2.3 km east of
Jiliza in a straight line, at an altitude of 1,040 to
1,087 metres above sea level.

It preserves the remnants of about 30 houses
and some underground wells.

The church of Upper Velad stands in its most
elevated part, namely at the summit of the hill, at
1,087 metres above sea level (N 41°13'42.66"; E
044°3921.66"). It represents a uni-nave vaulted
basilica with a sanctuary having the form of a

JbnhG dbpun gyniquntinhh Glintigm mbtupG wplbtiphg
The church of Upper Velad from the east
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dhwlwy pwnwowdl pwqhihy hnphGwop,
thnqwo JhuwpowlGh alny funpwl L Gpyne
dninp’ pwgywo hwpwywjihl b wpldunjwb
SGwlwwGbphg (YtpohGu hwqhy b Gpdwpynud
wyn Gwwwh hmaqyuo hlahnt yuumdwnny):
Gnyptip owolyp wwwywo b bntp uwyhwmwly
Ynwpwnphg Ytpnmywo JuwlnlGwynp dyuiuo
uppwwnw) Swojwuwitpny: MGh 6,26 x 5,03 U
wnpuwphl swihtin b 84 wd npdh hwumnipymG:

Gltinbgnt wpldunywl Ynninus™ th pwlh
dtinp htinwynpmpjuwl Yypw, ywhywlynd k
wlGhwjmnptl wpbdunjwl dnnphg Juwyp pl-
Jwo hGwpupuyul wpdwluwgpnipjudp pw-
pwynpp (182 x 58 x 17 ud): UpdwlGwgpmpjnibp
tpytqyyuG £ hwjtptG L ypugtpta.

Gu' Glnypu, wyu nninu | phlbgh jhpwjumuly
hGé, | Pwpununpl, ny wbulni, | dh pbpul n-
nnpdh wut, | pyhG | -0/ (1711), | w(unniu)o
nnupih | QuihG’ Bl[Elnkgnt [phtnn]hG:

J gbyg bogwodo s go@mo og(s)dy dg
GMogoemod  9bmsds(?) | dydols dobyBols
s Bgdo  Igbbmd@ms  gobi  fooz0mbmm
dgbomdls ddsbgom.

stretched semi-circle and two entrances opening
from its southern and western facades (the latter
has collapsed so that this entrance can hardly be
discerned). The gable roof of the monument
(exterior dimensions: 6.26 x 5.03 metres; wall
thickness: 84 cm) used to have finely-finished
regular covering slabs of white limestone.

The bilingual (in Armenian & Georgian) con-
struction inscription of the church was engraved
on the tympanum (182 x 58 x 17 cm) of its west-
ern entrance, which has fallen off and lies west of
the monument, within several metres of it.

Transl. from Armenian: I, Yenovk, had this door
built in memory of my soul and Bakhut. May those
who see it pray for us. In the year 1160 (1711).
May God have mercy upon Zal, the builder of this
church.

Transl. from Georgian: Christ, I, sinner Yenovk,
built this church and door in memory of my broth-
er Bakhut and my soul. May those who read it

pray for us.

Published for the first time.
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Gltintgnt funpwGp L dwdljwuwitinh pilnplGtp
The sanctuary of the church and fragments of its covering slabs

JbnhG dbpun gyminuuntinhh ttntgm pupwynph JhGwpupulwb tplkqdyui wpdwGuqpmpymbp, 1711 p.
The tympanum of the church of Upper Velad with a bilingual construction inscription (1711)



Pupqs. Lphumnu, wju wmwdwpp L noninp
uwnmgbgh btu’ dbnuynp GOmjpu, hd bLnpnp’
Pwlununpl L hGé hhpwmwl, mjpbp upnud,
nnnpuf wubl:

<pwwn. wnwohl whquu:

Gwlnp. hGywhu tplnud E, Gtintignt junnignuip qfuw-
ynphy E Glnypp, piplu twulwygl) £ Gwlb Awlununp, hul
2hGuwpuwp-Jupytinp (nunw) tnkp £ Quin:

Gltinbgm tptiuwwwnh Jujp pGluwo puptiphg dkyhG”
Tuwswpwlnuy, nphG Yhg' 3 winn (swihtipp’ 70 x 30 x 7 ud).
U@mp)p fuwsu | pupkfuwifu b QwpnidhG:

Qpuwn. Fhywl hwy yhdwgpmpjw, h. 9, ke 272:

Owlnp. duiwlwlp’ dC nup: b nhyy, hpwmwpwlhg-
Gtpp ufuwgty GG Yhiwagph Gppnpn nnnnud b «Qwpnuiy
whdGwlmbp ytpowbty «& UpnunhGy», npl k) puguwmpty’
«wnunupuwybnm {wpmpyml»: {wpy b GL, vwyu)G, np
Yhiwgpulwl guwpn hwymbGh hnpupdwGitpmd Gwpumw-
Nk pumn tpplk wn llhIlul sh umuqmlhb L, pwgb wn,

wtinp £ Guwnmh mGtGwy, np n1p heGunwpmd gnpowow-
Ju thG ny pb Gwpnwpuwbnm, wyp hwnwubiu «otumnw»
Juu «pwpwhwwmy» dLbpp:

Q- niquuntinhh qiptiquwlngp qpuntiglny L
tytintgnt ppowthwyp L hwwnljwwtu Ywnoniyghg
hwpwy wnwpwoywo hwppnipynilp: Ujuwntin
wwhww (gt &6 wytih pwl tpynt nmwuljuly
thhqliulﬁulp_ulphp L [uulzpulp ﬂLl’[IlulﬁlUl’ll—

Note: Apparently, Yenovk supervised the construction of
the church, in which Bakhut probably took some participation.
As for Zal, he was its master builder.

One of the fallen revetment stones of the church is
adorned with a cross relief near which an inscription of 3 lines
is found (dimensions: 70 x 30 x 7 cm):

Transl.: May the Holy Cross protect Jarum.

Published in: Fhjwl hwy yhdwgpnipjw, h. 9, Lo 272.

Note: The inscription traces back to the 18th century. It
should be noted that the publishers made a mistake in its third
line deciphering the personal name of “Jarum”/«Gwpnit» as
« UpnunhG», which they read as “architect Harutiun”
/«@wpunuwpuwytn {wpnipjnil». However, the Armenian
word «dwpuwpwwbny (the equivalent of ‘architect’) is not
ever abbreviated like that in the existing lapidary heritage;
besides, in the Late Middle Ages the Armenian words

Ful‘l:f"Um
Jestinesi

] s 0 5 W

«ntunw» (‘master’) or «pwpwhwwmy» (‘mason’) were used
instead of «Gwpumwpuwtimy.

The cemetery of Upper Velad occupies the
area close to the church particularly extending
in the smooth terrain south of it. It retains a
cross-stone and more than twenty tombstones,
including rectangular ones most of Wthh are

JbnphG dbjwun gymnuumtinhh qintqiwlngn tiknkgnt hwpuwdwihG ynnimd

The graveyard of Upper Velad lying south of the church

MuunybpwpwGnultnng muwwyuwGupwn YhphG dhpunmi
A tombstone with reliefs in Upper Velad
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Gwdl Bywiywo nmwwwlwpwntiph Wko dwul
nilGh qginuqunpn hwppupw(p, Uh pwGhup” Gul
ytGgunujhl ptvwltnpny wuwwuytpwpwlinuy-
Gtp: dtphquuwluwlui pyuyhp hnpwpdw(as-
pp Yybtpwptpmd GG 1628, 1679 (2 dhwynp),
1681, 1689, 1690, 1705, 1707 pp.: Stinnid wnljw
Ll Gl dE-d 2 nuptphG ytpwptipnn dh pwGh
wlpJwlihp wnmwwwlwpwnptp, npnlp pnnpp
dhwuh( ppuwutln 12 dhwynp, Ghpluywging
tilip unnnl.

fowgpun. ginupwlnuy, mtinwhw, swhtpp® 88 x 50
x 18 ud, phyhG, phywwmwlyh Ynpmpjub ypw b hhiGuwuwsh
unnphl dwunud® 5 wmnn.

Umpp fuwgu pwptfuwnu b Unwpbylpl, wi-
dbn uwwlbghl hnfnph oph Jpuwy: dbj(w)p
Uwpg(u)hli npnp, | pY(w)y(wl) (<E (1628):

<pwwun. wnwohl wliqud:

T -:. Ir B 1-.
TN ae =L A

Swywlwpwp. mtinwhw(, swhtpp' 140 x 54 x 25 uy,
ytpGuwiwumd yupgq fpwgwpwlnuyh ypw' 3 nnn.

Uju F mmwwuwl | w(uw)pnl LihG, | pyhG
uahe (1679):

<pwwn. wnwohl wiqud:

distinguished for their rich ornamentation (some
of them are also enriched with reliefs of every-
day scenes). The dated funerary memorials trace
back to 1628, 1679 (2 pieces), 1681, 1689,
1690, 1705 and 1707. There are also some
undated gravestones of the 17th and 18th cen-
turies, 12 in total number, the epitaphs of which
follow below:

Five lines engraved on the cornice, the curve beneath it
and lower than the main cross of a displaced ornate cross-stone
(dimensions: 88 x 50 x 18 cm):

Transl.: May the Holy Cross protect Arakel, who
was killed as an innocent victim during a quarrel
over some land and water. Velat Sargis’ son, 1077
(1628).

Published for the first time.
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Three lines carved on a simple cross relief on the upper
part of a displaced tombstone (dimensions: 140 x 54 x 25 cm):

Transl.: In this grave reposes Mr. Leli. In the
vear 1128 (1679).

Published for the first time.




Swywlwpwp. mbnuhw, swhtpp 143 x 28 ud, Ytip-
Gwiwund’ yuwpgq fpwgwpwinuyh Yypw, 2 nnn.

Uju E vnwuyul “FwdphhG npnh fow[pua Jpa,
[ py(hG) N-ahL2 (1679):

pwwn. Fhywl hwj yhdwagpnipjwa, h. 9, te 272:
Owlnp. hpwumwpwlynipjul dhe («Fwpphbl' npnh
UpwuhG») wnfuw £ wGdGulniGGiph wndwwnn:

Swywlwpwp. mtnuwhw, swhtpp' 122 x 27 ud, Ytip-
Gudiwunud® 1 wnn.

Uyu t mwwuwl Uwlnswphl’ npph Quyphd,

p(pt) NGL (1681):
<pwwn. wnwohl whquu:

Swywlwpwnph phynp. mbnwhwd, swhbtpp 75 x 27 x
47 ud, ytipGuiwunid® 1 wnn.

[Uyu [ mwywl @Jwpuwjnulb(hi), pyhi)
NGLE (1689):

<pwwn. wnwohl wiqud:

Two lines on a simple cross relief on the upper part of a
displaced tombstone (dimensions: 143 x 28 cm):

Transl.: In this grave reposes Khara's son
Dambi. In the year 1128 (1679).

I U U UG PRI
EN N -

Published in: Fhywl hwj Jhdwgpmpjwd, h. 9, te 272.
Note: In this decipherment («dwpphtl’ npnh UpwuhGy»),
the personal names are distorted.

A single line engraved on the upper part of a displaced
gravestone (dimensions: 122 x 27 cm):

Transl.: In this grave reposes Zal’s son
Manuchar. In the year 1130 (1681).

Published for the first time.

U0 U U AR L

A single line on the upper part of a displaced gravestone
fragment (dimensions: 75 x 27 x 47 cm):

Transl.: In this grave repose the remains of
Parsadan. In the year 1138 (1689).

Published for the first time.

Swywlwpwn. mbnwhwd, swthtpp 159 x 24 x 53 uy,
ytpGuwiwund® 1 wnn.

Uju b nmwwul wy(w)pnl UwpbihG® §nnw-

Uhg numwy GE(p)ukupl, pyht) (2010 (1690):
<pwu. wnwohl whqu:

A single line on the upper part of a displaced gravestone
(dimensions: 159 x 24 x 53 cm):

Transl.: In this grave reposes Mr. Marel, master
Nerses’ wife. In the year 1139 (1690).

Published for the first time.

U USUE wUsjus rne SuekLb £ 40LUQ jhSn-utnidgku k@@_’ﬁ"}

5

T

Sumlmﬁmpwphp UtphG Llh[un}h qbiptiqwlngnud
Tombstones in the cemetery of Upper Velad
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Swywlwpwp. unnphG we twuhg Ynnpgud, swthtpp
159 x 48 uy, ytipGuiwumd’ tpyhqyyub (Jpugtipt b hw-
JtiptiG) tpyunn wpdwGwagpnipymG.

d o agemo  @dg@om
()35, pY(hl) N-GO)2- (1705):

©ewpqu. Lphumnnu wmbp wumywo, jhytgbp (°)
Pwiwphl, py(pG) NGO/ (1705):

<pwwn. wnwohl wiqud:

dmobsbyo(?)

A bilingual, Georgian & Armenian (only the year) epitaph
of two lines carved on the upper part of a tombstone (dimen-
sions: 159 x 48 cm) which is broken in its lower right part:

Transl: Lord Jesus. May you remember (?)
Tamar. In the year 1154 (1705).

Published for the first time.

Swywlwpwn. mtnwhw@, unnphl Ywuhg Ynnpguo,
swthtipp 150 x 60 x 20 ud, ytpGwdwunid® 4 wnn.

Uju E mwwuil | Rwpununhl, ny [ mbulni, dh
nnnpuh [ wuk, py(hG) Q0L (1707):

<pwun. wnwohl wliqui:

Owlnp. ptiplbu wju Pwjununp thtintignt JhGupupu-
Jub wpdwlwgpnipjul dte hhpywd dhllnyG wGaa k:

] 2 T

.3

Four lines on the upper part of a displaced gravestone (di-
mensions: 150 x 60 x 20 cm) which is broken in its lower part:

Transl.: In this grave reposes Bakhut. May those
who see it pray for his soul. In the year 1156
(1707).

Published for the first time.

Note: Probably, Bakhut is the same person mentioned in
the construction inscription of the church.

WU EWULYU L

F URN=U1 hE0Y
nkven- Jk N20%
U0k 3~ nongs's

Swyuwlwpwp. ninnublyniGudl, suthtipp 155 x 54 ud,
ytpGuwdwund® 5 wnn.

Uju F mwyywl Cwdfught, | pyhl | 00...
(1700-wmlud pp.):

<pwwn. wnwohl wiquud:

Bwlnp. mwwywlwghpl wnwohl wiquui pGptipgty LGp
1992 p. utiwntiiptiphG, tpp hGwyw)p EhGp wyghity fjundnn-
(itigh 8nmpw {whbtpywlh wnwelnpnmpyup, vhinbn
utp ytipohG wygbinipjul dwudwbwy 2013 p. dwpnhG, wjl
JtpwquGty shwonnytig:

Five lines on the upper part of a rectangular tombstone
(dimensions: 155 x 54 cm):

Transl.: In this grave reposes Tamaz. In the year
11... (1700s).

Published for the first time.

Note: We first read this epitaph in September 1992, when
we made a visit to this site having Yura Hakhverdian from
Khozhorni as our guide. However, we failed to find it in situ
when we again went there in March 2013.

Swywlwpwn. mbnwhw, suthtpp 115 x 38 x 17 uy, 4
wnn.
Uju b mwwwl | Upupjtpnm | nhnwy ©Oh-

GluyyphGha:
<pww. wnwohl wiquud:

Four lines on a displaced tombstone (dimensions: 115 x
38 x 17 cm):

Transl.: In this grave reposes Alaverdi’s mother
Tinatin.

Published for the first time.

UM UL kg
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Swywlwpwp. mtinwhw@, unnphG dwuhg Ynnpguo,
suthtipp’ 56 x 44 ud, YtipGudwund® 4 wnn.

Uju F mwwuwl | Quih nkywy [ wpupnd ©Oh-
GhuyphGha:

<pwwn. wnwohl wiqud:
Bwlnp. Quih unp wmhyhG OhGwphGh mwwwlwaghpd k:

P

Swywlwpwn. mbnwhw, swhtpp 151 x 24 x 53 uy,
JtpGuiwunud® 1 wnn.

Uju F mwwl w(wpn)i QuihG, ny wmbni,
uh nnnpuh wuk:

<pwun. wnwohl wliqui:

Owlnp. ptiplu uw GYtintighG Yuemgnn QuiG t: dudw-
Guyp' dhGsl 1711 p.:

Four lines on the upper part of a displaced tombstone
(dimensions: 56 x 44 cm) which is broken in its lower part:

Transl.: In this grave reposes Zal’s mother, Mr.

Tinatin.
Published for the first time.
Note: This is the epitaph of Zal’s mother, Mrs. Tinatin.

AlAULVS IS
WLFHHLY
UNeP-Fo

A single line on the upper part of a displaced tombstone
(dimensions: 151 x 24 x 53 cm):

Transl.: In this grave Mr. Zal's remains rest in eter-
nal repose. May those who see it pray for his soul.

Published for the first time.

Note: Probably, this is the builder of the church. The epi-
taph was engraved prior to 1711.

]

AhEeULULLh GUGAESh

2hhquyhg mnhn qony 2,2 Y hwpwy-wpb-
ununp’ dhpwhwlp wlijwip hwjnmGh hwlnu-
dwund (0. u. 1228 d, N 41°12'54.00% E
044°3625.14"), qquhwyw6yt] GG wGiywly pw-
nny Junnigywo shwlwy hnphGuwopny gpbph
hhuGwytp tytntgh L qiptiqiwlng: Al wint-
(ip Unnwgmpjul dwnljwo b thywopltph nt
hnnuptpnph dty punjuo tlytntgng Gydwp-
ynud GG vhwyG Yhuwpninpuwy funpwlh dh hwn-
Jwon L, np nipuwqpuy b, Gub ubnuGh Ybdpwnpb
wlfuwfun yhdwlynu:

CHURCH OF DZITAHANK

Dzitahank is a plot of land lying 2.2 km south-
west of Jiliza in a straight line, at an altitude of
1,228 metres above sea level (N 41°1254.00"; E
044°3625.14"). It preserves a cemetery and a uni-
nave church of undressed stone which is almost
totally ruined, being buried under ruins and a
layer of earth. At present only part of its semi-cir-
cular sanctuary can be discerned with the altar
stone, which, surprising as it is, is preserved
intact.

Gltintgnt WGugnpnltp hpwhwlp hwlnudiwunid
Church remnants in a plot of land called Dzitahank
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Ouunwyh v wnyw L Gubk plwynp th
fuws, npp ptiplu wjunbn £ thnfuwnpyty Glytnt-
gnt hwpwywjhG Ynnind mwpwoywo qblipbq-
twlnghg: fvhn punnuiGtpny qtipbiquwlngnid
Gtpyuynuiu wwhwywlylp GG pnipg dkyniytu
nwuljuy widywly vwjwnwwwiitn:

SNLURLULh UD ULLUSEAD
2hthquiyhg mnhn gony 2 Yd hyniuhu-wpl-
ununp’ «<jnilh mwfum» Jud «Gpghl hnn» w-
(niGGtpny hwynGh hwlnudwumd L qubynud
utipdwpGuwy qynintiph pGwyhsGiphG Snjwpwph
fuws wiJwdp hwynmGh uppwnbnhG (0. ¥. 1197
U, N 41°14'14.58"; E 044°3634.74"):

Ujuntin’ hpJuwlnuiwdl tpupwo winw-
nwowdl tnfwdninh pipwal wnwldiuguwo
thnpphy pwpdpnipjwl ypw® 2pgwihwly pwpw-
Ynywp GGpund, wolw GG Gnpugnyyl dudiw-
GuwyGbppG Ybpwptpnn tGpynt fuwspwptn:
‘Lpwlghg thnpph Ypw Yuw wwptiphy, huly dkoh
Ypw' tpyunn wpdwlwgpmpniG.

1990 p.: || Sojupwp hwshl | Andwl Qw-
[mumnh [ bwlGqunulhg:

Glpwnntih L, np uppwgduwod wju Juwjpnwd
(wiuyhGnmd qnymipynil £ mGhgty] wybith hhG dh
fuwgpwp, npp, uwluwyG, sh wwhujwyb:

The ruins of the church, the original name of
which has fallen into oblivion, also retain a
winged cross probably brought here from a ceme-
tery extending south of the monument. It pre-
serves over 15 densely-lying unfinished slabs of
memorial stone.

CROSS OF TOLABAB

A plot of land, situated 2 km north-west of Jiliza
in a straight line and known by the names of Hyuni
Takht and Yergen Hogh, retains a sacred site called
Cross of Tolabab by the inhabitants of the adjacent
villages. It lies at an altitude of 1,197 metres above
sea level (N 41°14'14.58"; E 044°3634.74%).

It comprises two modern khachkars surround-
ed with stones: they are placed on the small
mound-like elevation of a wooded mountain
branch, which has an extended form resembling a
cape. The smaller of them bears a year and the
larger one an inscription of two lines:

Transl.: 1990. To the Cross of Tolabab from
Roman Galust Khanzadian.

Most presumably, this sacred site used to
retain an older cross-stone which has not reached
our days.

.r.;_'-'.._.'_ 2 .
Snjwpwph fuw; uppunntinhh fuwspwnp, 1990 p.
The cross-stone (1990) in the sacred site named Cross of

Tolabab

Tunpultpnh Jubpp b Twijwp (tep hymuhuhg
Khorakert Monastery and Mount Lalvar from the north
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Gpph unbnddwbl wewlgbnt hwdwn
dtp funpphl Gpwjunwaghwnnig)nllh Ghp
hwjwnbned pwllwaghb oh hqwghGbp
Upwdwyhu Iwihynpjwiha L

Uhbp dwpnwljwbh:

We are very grateful to our dear friends
from Jiliza who supported us

in the preparation of the book:
Aramayis Halivorian and

Mher Vardanian.v



dwyph plnipjwb Lk dauynipwyht wpdbpbtph wwhwwbdwb hhdbGwnpwdh (FPWC) «SOS dwlnyp» dpwahpp, npp Ywbph £ Ynsdbg
2012 p. (24 wdhu wbnnnipjwidp) Gpndhnipjwl «Gdpnwywlywb hwplbwGnipjwl pwnuwpwlwlnipywly (63R) 2ppwlwlybEpney,
Owwwnwly ntbh hwiw)Gpwhl nudbph GEpgpwddwénipjwdp dwlwshih nupdbne b wpdbnpbine Iwywunwbh b Jdpwunwbh
uwhdwOwlkpd z2pepwbibpnud Wywhwwijwé wwowmwintpwihl b wpiuwphhly pGnyph ywwndwlwb hnipwpdwbbbpp” Yhuwdbp L
dnnwgywé phpnbp L wdpnglbp, Jwiptp, ByenkghGbp L dwwnwebbp, dhelGwnwpywb pGwlhwwnbnhGbp, pwpwidwd-Yuguwpwbbbp,
qlipbqdwlnglbp L wy G, npnGghg pwwnbpl winbudwé 60 L fuGwdph, nipwnpnipywl Yuphp nlGko:

«Awwnbnd vwhdwblbpp” wwhhp, wwhwwbhp, ubGwdhp» Yupgwiununy «SOS twlnyp» dpwaghpb hpwlhwbwgyned £ Uplkbywh
Gawynipwihb gnpopbybpnipjwb phlGwbuwdnpiwdp, Iwjfwluwl swpnwpwwbnnigntht nwuncdbwuppnn hhdbwnpwah (38N3) L
dvv international wquwybpwnipywh @phihuph nwpwéwnpewblw)hl gpuwubljwyh hbwn hwdwgnpdwlgnipjwip:

«SOS dwynyp»-p gqunbnd £, np wwwdwlwb wpdtplbbph wwhwwbnudld ne nwunudbGwuppnepynibp fupwlOnud GG hGrwynp
2now0bEpnLd gpnuwpeontpjwl quipqugnidp:

«SOS dwlynuyp»-p Jwpunpnud £ dpwlynipwihlG  wpdbplbph  nuunudGwuppdwl  w2fuwnwlplbbpht b ppwig  wwhwwodwh
dheongweniilbpht YJpwunmwbh b Swjwuwmwbh uwhdwbwdbpd 2powbbbpnud pwldnn pwqiwqg Gphunwuwpnnigjwb Gepgpwydnedp:
Jduwnwh GOp, np hwyptlwdwlwsnipjwbb wrbsdnn ghwnbhpbbph funpwgnudp Yhwwuwnh wwywaqwih wepwyb] hnguunwnp pwnwpuwgnt
dlwdnpdwp:

The SOS Culture project of the Foundation for the Preservation of Wildlife and Cultural Assets (FPWC) was triggered in 2012 for a 24-
month period within the framework of the European Neighbourhood Policy (ENP) of the European Union. It pursues the aim of raising
awareness of, and evaluating the wide variety of religious and secular monuments (semi-ruined and forgotten castles and fortresses,
churches, chapels and monasteries, medieval sites, cave dwellings, cemeteries, etc.) preserved in the border regions of the Republics
of Armenia and Georgia with the involvement of community members (this heritage is mostly consigned to neglect and needs proper at-
tention).

“Crossing borders to save, preserve and care”: this is the slogan of the SOS Culture project, which is funded by the Eastern Partnership
Culture Programme and has been implemented in collaboration with Research on Armenian Architecture (RAA) Foundation and the dvv
international Georgia Country office.

Those involved in the project are convinced that the preservation and studies of historical assets promote the development of tourism
in remote regions. They attach much importance to the involvement of the youth of different nationalities living in the border regions of
Armenia and Georgia in the events aimed at research into, and preservation of, cultural assets.

We believe that deep cognizance of one’s homeland and its heritage will make the coming generations more caring, fostering their
sense of responsibility.

«SOS docwiynyp» orwughr hruuyuwitwgyty £ Yduwrh pGnggjuut L dewiynipuyhG wirdGfatrh muahmuiadw G hhdGuunrnuudh Ynndhg Zudyuayuul dudrswaruambsnigntaa
niuntdGuuuhrnn hhdGuwinrudh b ndy hopGratieal druususuuGiuut duiuGuwigjninh his huadwstn: @rwghrm Phtwtuwdnrtg EGUmmuuiyuwiG dhnugintap:
SOS Culture project is implemented by the Foundation for the Preservation of Wildlife and Cultural Assets (FPWC) in cooperatfion with
dvv international - Georgia Country Office and Research on Armenian Architecture Foundation (RAA). The project is funded by the European Union.

EUIOEAST FPW(( " A AN
CULTURE llm A b b

Uju smuwigrnepjwl pnywdnwynipintdp nrut alnd sh wrswehudysnid drmmuwyuwa dhntpjwG sbuwlyGsaGrp:
The views expressed in this publication do not necessarily reflect the views of the European Union.
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